
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Scrutiny Review - Engaging with Hard to Reach 
Communities 

 
 
MONDAY, 21ST DECEMBER, 2009 at 10:00 HRS - NORTHUMBERLAND PARK 
RESOURCE CENTRE, 177 PARK LANE, TOTTENHAM, N17 0HJ. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou and Aitken 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (late items 

will be considered under the agenda item which they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 10 below). 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is being considered must disclose to that meeting the existence 
and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or it is related to the determining of any approval, consent, 
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the code of conduct. 
 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 18)  
 
 To approve minutes of meetings held on: 

 
Monday 26th October 2009 
Monday 16th November 2009 
 
 

5. HOMES FOR HARINGEY  (PAGES 19 - 22)  
 
 To hear from Simon Godfrey, Involvement, Communication & Equalities Manager, 

Homes for Haringey. 
 

6. BRINGING UNITY BACK INTO THE COMMUNITY (BUBIC)    
 
 To hear from BUBIC. 

 
BUBIC is a community based organisation mainly aimed at crack users that provides 
support for drug users, ex-drug users, their family and friends. 
 

7. SEXUAL HEALTH ON CALL    
 
 To hear from Michelle Farley of Sexual Health on Call, a confidential support service 

for female sex workers. 
 
 

8. AFRIKCARE/COMMUNITY LINK FORUM REPRESENTATIVE  (PAGES 23 - 26)  
 
 To hear from Ibi Campbell, Afrikcare and a Community Link Forum Representative. 

 
Afrikcare delivers health and social care services to vulnerable people in the Borough 
of Haringey 
 



 

3 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Monday 11th January 2010 

10:00-12:00 
 
 

10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member 
Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Principal Scrutiny Support Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2933 
Fax: 020 8489  2533 
Email: 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.u
k  

 
 

9th December 2009 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



       
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 –

 E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

D
ra

ft
 M

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 2

6
th
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

 
P

re
s
e
n
t:

  
C
llr
 B
u
ll 
(C

h
a
ir
),
 C
llr
 A
it
k
e
n
, 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 M

iln
e
r,
 I
n
n
o
 A
m
a
d
i,
 D
u
n
c
a
n
 S
tr
o
u
d
, 
D
ilo
 L
a
la
n
d
e
, 
S
h
a
w
n
 G

o
o
d
c
h
ild
, 
E
ri
c
 M

o
n
k
, 

J
o
d
ie
 S
z
w
e
d
z
in
s
k
i,
 M

a
tt
h
e
w
 P
e
lli
n
g
, 
K
ir
s
ty
 F
o
x
, 
Ib
ili
o
la
 C

a
m
p
b
e
ll,
 C
e
n
k
 O

rh
a
n
, 
J
o
c
e
ly
n
 S
e
k
ib
o
, 
M
a
rg
a
re
t 
F
o
w
le
r,
 M

e
la
n
ie
 

P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
 

 

It
e
m

 
M

in
u
te

s
 

 

1
 –
 A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

 

C
llr
 G

in
a
 A
d
a
m
o
u
 

S
io
b
h
a
n
 H

a
rr
in
g
to
n
 

G
lo
ri
a
 S
a
ff
re
y
 

 

2
 –
 U

rg
e
n
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
o
lic
e
 –
 E
ri
c
 M

o
n
k
 a
n
d
 S
h
a
w
n
 G

o
o
d
c
h
ild
 

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
ta
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 a
t 
th
re
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
: 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
–
 S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 Y
a
rd
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 W

id
e
 

W
a
rd
 b
a
s
e
d
 –
 S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 T
e
a
m
s
 

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 h
a
s
 a
 T
u
rk
is
h
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

e
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 T
e
a
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 k
e
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 W

a
rd
 l
e
v
e
l.
  
T
h
e
y
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
n
e
ls
 w
h
e
re
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
re
 s
e
t.
  
T
h
e
s
e
 p
a
n
e
ls
 a
re
 p
u
b
lic
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
p
o
lic
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



  

 S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 T
e
a
m
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 d
ro
p
 i
n
to
 Y
o
u
th
 c
lu
b
s
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
b
a
s
is
 t
o
 s
p
e
a
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 

th
e
re
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 

H
a
v
e
 a
 s
a
y
 d
a
y
s
 

•
 

S
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 

•
 

S
p
e
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
ils
t 
o
n
 p
a
tr
o
l 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
u
b
e
 s
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 s
h
o
p
s
. 

 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 

“O
ff
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t”
 –
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
th
 

•
 

M
u
lt
i 
fa
it
h
 f
o
ru
m
 

•
 

T
u
rk
is
h
 f
a
it
h
 f
o
ru
m
 

•
 

B
o
x
in
g
 c
lu
b
 

 N
e
w
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 p
ro
je
c
t 
o
n
 j
o
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
s
 g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 a
 

g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
ts
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 t
im

e
 

a
re
 t
h
e
n
 k
e
p
t.
  
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
/o
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 D

e
s
k
 a
t 
th
e
 M

a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 C

o
u
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 

p
e
o
p
le
 g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 j
u
d
ic
ia
ry
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 c
a
n
 b
o
o
k
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 

A
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 k
in
d
 o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 
 

3
 –
 D

e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t 

N
o
n
e
 

4
 –
 M

in
u
te
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

la
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

5
 –
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
in
k
 

F
o
ru
m
/C

ru
c
ia
l 
S
te
p
s
 

A
b
s
e
n
t 

6
 –
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
in
k
 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 C
e
n
k
 O

rh
a
n
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r,
 B
M
E
 C

a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
in
k
 F
o
ru
m
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

Page 2



  F
o
ru
m
/B
M
E
 C

a
re
rs
 

W
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
e
 ‘
H
a
rd
-t
o
-R

e
a
c
h
’?
 

•
 

B
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 M

in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

•
 

Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 O

ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 

L
o
n
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

•
 

L
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
, 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
s
e
x
u
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 

C
a
re
rs
 

 ‘C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 P
ro
je
c
t’
 

•
 

U
s
e
 o
f 
p
la
in
, 
s
im

p
le
 E
n
g
lis
h
 e
.g
. 
“A
re
 y
o
u
 g
e
tt
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
?
” 
a
s
 o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 “
In
c
o
m
e
 

M
a
x
im

is
a
ti
o
n
”.
 

•
 

P
ic
tu
re
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 u
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
o
p
ic
 i
s
 e
a
s
ily
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
a
b
le
. 

 F
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 s
ta
ff
 

S
p
e
a
k
 1
1
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 

C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
o
u
t-
re
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 k
e
e
p
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
ri
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

 B
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
n
o
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 ‘
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
  
d
o
 n
o
t 
d
iv
u
lg
e
 t
o
o
 

m
u
c
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
fe
a
r 
o
f 
th
is
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 
 I
n
 

th
is
 s
e
n
s
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 m

o
re
 ‘
tr
u
s
tw
o
rt
h
y
’ 
fo
r 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
t 
th
is
 f
e
a
r 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 

•
 

W
h
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 e
.g
. 
re
s
p
it
e
, 
m
e
a
ls
, 

tr
a
v
e
l 
c
o
s
ts
. 

Page 3



  

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 O

v
e
rl
o
a
d
 -
 H

a
rd
-t
o
-r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
m
a
ll 
in
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 
A
lw
a
y
s
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

e
a
rl
ie
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
: 
“w

ill
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
I 
g
a
th
e
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
?
”
 

•
 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
n
fu
s
io
n
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 o
ft
e
n
 f
e
e
l 

th
a
t 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
ro
m
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
d
ic
to
ry
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 u
s
e
d
 

c
a
n
 o
ft
e
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
fu
s
in
g
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
d
o
in
g
 t
o
o
 m

u
c
h
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 e
m
p
o
w
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
m
 (
‘O
v
e
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
’?
).
 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
lin
k
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
w
h
e
re
  
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
x
is
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
v
e
rl
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t 
o
n
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
o
th
e
r.
 

•
 

N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t 
G
P
s
 a
re
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
tr
u
s
tw
o
rt
h
y
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

G
P
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 v
e
ry
 l
a
rg
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
.g
. 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 t
o
 h
a
n
d
 o
u
t.
 

 M
a
rg
a
re
t 
F
o
w
le
r 
- 
E
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
a
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
w
h
o
 w
o
rk
s
 w

it
h
 w
o
m
e
n
’s
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 M

a
rg
a
re
t 
g
o
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

le
a
fl
e
ts
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 E
n
g
lis
h
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 r
u
n
s
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
la
s
s
 t
h
e
 

le
a
fl
e
ts
 a
re
 g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 b
o
th
 l
e
a
rn
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
. 

 O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
 h
id
d
e
n
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
. 
 O

ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
/ 
w
o
rd
 o
f 

m
o
u
th
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
s
o
la
te
d
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
is
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 

w
h
o
 p
re
fe
r 
to
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
 p
a
p
e
r 
fo
rm

. 
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
ic
h
 b
ri
n
g
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
e
.g
. 
O
ld
e
r 
a
n
d
 B
o
ld
e
r,
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
e
tc
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r)
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
d
a
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 n
o
te
d
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
t 
e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 w
a
n
ts
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
rm

a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 t
h
e
 u
s
u
a
l 
w
a
y
 o
f 

Page 4



  

d
o
in
g
 t
h
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
la
rg
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
s
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
w
a
y
 o
f 
re
a
c
h
in
g
 

th
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
s
 t
o
 g
o
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
e
m
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
 y
o
u
. 

 Im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
u
s
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 p
la
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 w
is
h
e
s
 

o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
a
s
 n
o
te
d
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
lin
k
in
g
 u
p
 a
c
ro
s
s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 

fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 w
h
e
re
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
W
o
rk
e
rs
 i
n
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
a
s
 n
o
te
d
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

k
n
o
w
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
is
 g
o
in
g
 o
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 t
a
rg
e
t 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 

7
 –
 N

H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 S
tr
o
u
d
 a
n
d
 D
ilo
 L
a
la
n
d
e
 

 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
s
o
m
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
. 
 A
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
s
 w
h
e
n
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 

D
ia
b
e
te
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
u
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
: 

•
 

U
n
-e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 

•
 

E
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 u
n
in
fo
rm

e
d
 

•
 

In
fo
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 u
n
-e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 

•
 

In
fo
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
m
a
lle
r 
g
ro
u
p
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 f
o
u
r.
 

 E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
h
o
w
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a
re
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 ‘
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
’ 
g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 E
x
p
e
rt
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M

a
tr
o
n
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
u
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 W
o
rk
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 e
m
p
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 w
it
h
 

re
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 A
re
a
 A
s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
 w
h
e
re
 l
in
k
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

 W
o
rk
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
 G

P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
, 
th
is
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

th
e
 c
a
s
e
 w
it
h
 s
m
a
lle
r 
G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
. 

Page 5



  

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
H
A
V
C
O
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
m
a
p
p
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
in
g
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
. 
  

8
 –
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

K
ir
s
ty
 F
o
x
, 
P
ri
n
c
ip
le
 P
o
lic
y
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

 A
n
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
in
g
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
ra
ft
e
d
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
o
n
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
. 

 C
llr
 B
u
ll 
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
) 
a
re
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
in
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ix
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
  

a
llo
w
 u
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 a
 p
o
lic
y
, 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
r 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 D

u
ti
e
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
R
a
c
e
, 
G
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 E
IA
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
e
o
p
le
 

•
 

M
a
il 
o
u
t 
to
 k
n
o
w
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 l
o
w
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r
a
te
 f
ro
m
 L
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
G
a
y
, 
B
i-
S
e
x
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 O
n
ly
 5
0
%
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
o
n
ly
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

Page 6



  

s
o
m
e
th
in
g
. 
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 d
o
n
e
 a
s
 a
 ‘
ti
c
k
 b
o
x
’ 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
: 

 

 

Page 7



  

 
 

9
 –
 N

e
x
t 
S
te
p
s
 a
n
d
 

d
a
te
 o
f 
n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 1
6
th
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

1
0
-1
2
 

H
o
rn
s
e
y
 N

e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

1
0
 –
 N

e
w
 i
te
m
s
 o
f 

u
rg
e
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

Page 8



       
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 –

 E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

D
ra

ft
 M

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 M

o
n
d
a
y
 1

6
th
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

re
s
e
n
t:

  
C
llr
 B
u
ll 
(C

h
a
ir
),
 C

llr
 A
m
in
, 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 M

iln
e
r,
 C

h
ri
s
 G

ile
s
, 
D
ilo
 L
a
la
n
d
e
, 
Ib
ili
o
la
 C
a
m
p
b
e
ll,
 I
fy
 A
d
e
n
u
g
a
, 
J
o
c
e
ly
n
 S
e
k
ib
o
, 

M
o
h
a
m
m
e
d
 D

ir
s
h
e
, 
M
a
rg
a
re
t 
F
o
w
le
r,
 K
e
it
h
 E
lli
o
tt
, 
M
e
la
n
ie
 P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
 

 

te
m

 
M

in
u
te

s
 

 

1
 –
 A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

 

C
llr
 G

in
a
 A
d
a
m
o
u
 

C
llr
 A
it
k
e
n
 

 

2
 –
 U

rg
e
n
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

3
 –
 D

e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t 

N
o
n
e
 

4
 –
 M

in
u
te
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

la
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

5
 -
 C

a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

C
llr
 A
m
in
 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
t 
th
e
 h
e
a
rt
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
im

s
 t
o
 d
o
, 
it
 i
s
 a
t 
th
e
 h
e
a
rt
 o
f 

p
o
lic
ie
s
. 

 E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
: 

o
 
L
iv
in
g
 U

n
d
e
r 
O
n
e
 S
u
n
 

o
 
M
e
e
t 
th
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 

o
 
E
id
 E
v
e
n
t 

Page 9



  

o
 
N
e
v
ro
s
 

 
A
ll 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
ig
n
e
d
 
u
p
 
to
 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
e
ts
 o
u
r 
c
le
a
r 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
 

o
 
W
o
rk
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 j
o
in
 u
p
 o
u
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

o
 
E
n
g
a
g
e
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
w
ill
 m

a
k
e
 a
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 

o
 
B
e
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
s
k
in
g
 

o
 
B
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 a
im

 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

o
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

o
 
B
u
ild
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
m
p
a
c
t 
- 
a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

o
 
R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 
th
e
 
ro
le
 
o
f 

th
e
 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
s
e
c
to
r 

in
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 a
 v
o
ic
e
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
. 
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
to
o
lk
it
: 

th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
T
o
o
lk
it
 
s
e
ts
 
o
u
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
ta
ff
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
ra
in
in
g
: 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
fo
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
it
s
 s
ta
ff
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
th
o
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
ru
n
s
 a
 c
o
u
rs
e
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 

 A
re
a
 A
s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
 –
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
w
a
y
s
. 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
c
ti
v
is
ts
 i
n
p
u
t 
in
to
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
rm

u
la
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 T
e
a
m
 e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
: 
 

•
 

W
o
rl
d
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 D
a
y
 

•
 

H
o
lo
c
a
u
s
t 
M
e
m
o
ri
a
l 
D
a
y
 

•
 

In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
W
o
m
e
n
’s
 D
a
y
 

•
 

W
o
rl
d
 A
id
s
 D
a
y
  

Page 10



  

•
 

B
la
c
k
 H

is
to
ry
 M

o
n
th
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

•
 

L
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
G
a
y
, 
B
is
e
x
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
r 
M
o
n
th
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

•
 

E
id
 e
v
e
n
t 
- 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 1
2
7
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 Q
u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
?
 

If
 a

 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
a
n
 A

re
a
 A

s
s
e
m
b
ly
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

in
u
te
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 a
re
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
. 
 T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 a
ls
o
 f
o
llo

w
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 l
is
t 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
te
n
c
e
 o
f 
g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
to
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 a
t 
a
ll 
o
r 
o
n
ly
 w

a
n
t 
to
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 o
n
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
is
s
u
e
 o
f 
to
p
ic
/p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 S
e
lb
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 a
 c
ir
c
u
la
r 
g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
it
s
 r
e
n
t.
  
S
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
b
a
s
e
 

fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 m

o
n
e
y
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
n
s
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
is
 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l.
 
 
P
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
th
e
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
s
id
e
 
o
f 

ru
n
n
in
g
 
a
 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
 G

ro
u
p
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
ti
c
 w

h
e
n
 s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 a
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 e
.g
. 
w
o
u
ld
 i
t 
b
e
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
a
s
 a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
ru
n
 w
it
h
in
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 T
h
e
 
th
ir
d
 
s
e
c
to
r 

m
a
p
p
in
g
 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 
h
a
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
1
7
0
0
 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 B

e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
h
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
p
p
ro
x
 9
0
0
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 j
o
in
 u
p
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 w

h
a
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 d
o
n
e
 

w
h
e
re
. 

 N
o
te
d
 
th
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
d
o
n
’t
 
a
c
tu
a
lly
 
k
n
o
w
 
h
o
w
 
to
 
g
e
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
 

 

Page 11



  

 A
c
ti
o
n
 –
 s
h
o
rt
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
h
a
t 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

q
u
a
lif
y
 f
o
r 
a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
g
ra
n
t.
  

  

6
 -
 N

e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

J
o
c
e
ly
n
 S
e
k
ib
o
 a
n
d
 M

o
h
a
m
m
e
d
 D
ir
s
h
e
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 
H
e
lp
 t
o
 G

e
t 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 T
h
e
ir
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
y
: 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 d
e
fi
n
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

•
 

G
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
s
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 

•
 

G
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 

•
 

G
e
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 -
 e
.g
. 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
, 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 w
a
tc
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
F
ri
e
n
d
s
 o
f 
P
a
rk
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 

J
o
in
 
lo
c
a
l 
b
o
a
rd
s
 
a
n
d
 
fo
ru
m
s
 
–
 
e
.g
. 
P
o
lic
e
 
S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
P
a
n
e
ls
, 
A
re
a
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 b
o
a
rd
s
, 

•
 

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 –
 e
.g
. 
h
o
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
lu
b
s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
h
o
m
e
 

h
e
lp
, 
m
o
b
ile
 a
n
d
 b
o
o
k
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
b
y
 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 
o
ff
ic
e
 
s
p
a
c
e
, 

h
e
lp
in
g
 
fo
rm

u
la
te
 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
s
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 e
tc
. 

 W
h
o
 W

e
 T
h
in
k
 A
re
 H
a
rd
 T
o
 R

e
a
c
h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

 

•
 

R
e
fu
g
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 A
s
y
lu
m
 S
e
e
k
e
rs
 

o
 
K
u
rd
is
h
, 
S
o
m
a
li,
 C
o
n
g
o
le
s
e
, 
A
n
g
o
la
n
, 
e
tc
 

•
 

N
e
w
 A
rr
iv
e
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 (
E
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
U
) 

o
 
P
o
lis
h
, 
R
o
m
a
n
ia
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
E
a
s
te
rn
 E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 C
o
u
n
tr
ie
s
 

•
 

R
e
lig
io
u
s
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

Page 12



  

o
 
C
h
a
re
d
i 
J
e
w
is
h
 

•
 

E
ld
e
rl
y
 a
n
d
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 

 S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 

B
e
tt
e
r 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
h
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C

o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 H
o
m
e
s
 F
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

B
e
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 M

o
re
 O

u
tr
e
a
c
h
 I
n
 t
h
e
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

•
 

M
o
re
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 E
m
p
o
w
e
r 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 f
ro
m
 a
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
d
is
tr
u
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
/j
a
rg
o
n
 

u
s
e
d
 e
tc
. 

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

a
y
s
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
o
n
e
s
 d
o
n
e
: 
S
o
m
a
lia
n
, 
K
u
rd
is
h
, 
F
re
n
c
h
, 
G
re
e
k
 E
ld
e
rl
y
, 
C
h
a
re
d
i.
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 w

it
h
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 G

ro
u
p
s
, 
th
e
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 N

H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 

lo
o
k
 
a
t 
w
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
th
e
re
 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 
b
re
a
s
t 
fe
e
d
in
g
, 

c
h
ir
o
p
o
d
y
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 c
o
o
k
in
g
, 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
, 
d
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
, 
C
V
D
 e
tc
. 

E
a
c
h
 s
ta
ll 
h
o
ld
e
r 
h
a
s
 a
 f
o
rm

 t
o
 l
o
g
 w

h
a
t 
ty
p
e
s
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 a
s
k
in
g
 f
o
r.
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 

th
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 g
a
p
s
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
. 

 N
H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 i
s
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 m

o
re
 w
it
h
 N

e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 w
it
h
 

G
P
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 A

re
a
 A

s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
 a
s
 a
 u
s
e
fu
l 
to
o
l 
fo
r 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 m

o
re
 h
o
lis
ti
c
a
lly
 b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
th
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
g
a
in
e
d
 
b
y
 
N
H
S
 
T
ru
s
ts
 
in
v
it
in
g
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 g
a
in
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 

Page 13



  

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 

E
n
g
lis
h
 w

it
h
 t
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 p
a
n
e
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
. 
 Q

u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 w

h
a
t 
th
e
 t
u
rn
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
im

e
 i
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
?
  
H
o
w
 m

a
n
y
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
?
  
H
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
s
t?
 
N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
. 

N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
t 
e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 c
a
n
 r
e
a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 

to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
c
ti
o
n
 –
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 T
ra
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 a
b
o
v
e
 p
o
in
ts
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
w
e
n
ty
 S

o
m
a
lia
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 w

h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

to
 f
o
rm

 a
n
 u
m
b
re
lla
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
/f
o
ru
m
. 

 

7
 –
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 L
in
k
 

F
o
ru
m
/C

ru
c
ia
l 
S
te
p
s
 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 I
fy
 A
d
e
n
u
g
a
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 

 C
ru
c
ia
l 
S
te
p
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 c
h
ild
re
n
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
1
7
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 o
ft
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 j
u
v
e
n
ile
s
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 d
is
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
, 
o
ft
e
n
 i
n
 t
ro
u
b
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
. 
 A
ls
o
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
w
h
e
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 b
a
ile
d
 b
u
t 
a
re
 r
e
fu
s
in
g
 t
o
 g
o
 h
o
m
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 

d
o
n
’t
 f
e
e
l 
c
o
m
fo
rt
a
b
le
 t
h
e
re
 e
.g
. 
if
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 i
s
 r
e
lig
io
u
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
n
’t
. 
 C

ru
c
ia
l 

S
te
p
s
 w
o
u
ld
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
is
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
te
p
s
 i
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
/s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 o
th
e
rw

is
e
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 

h
o
w
 t
o
 g
e
t 
h
e
lp
, 
o
r 
n
o
t 
fe
e
l 
a
b
le
 t
o
 f
o
r 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
re
a
s
o
n
s
. 
 A
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 g
iv
e
n
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
a
 

w
o
m
a
n
 w
h
o
 s
u
ff
e
re
d
 f
ro
m
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
. 
 H
e
r 
h
u
s
b
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 g
a
in
e
d
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
lt
u
re
 s
h
e
 c
a
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 m

a
le
 k
e
e
p
s
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 
 C

ru
c
ia
l 

S
te
p
s
 w
a
s
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
th
e
 l
a
d
y
 t
o
  
V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

Page 14



  

 A
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t:
 

M
o
re
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 T
h
is
 m

a
y
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 

m
a
p
p
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 H
A
V
C
O
. 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B
u
ild
in
g
 –
 H
A
V
C
O
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
m
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 
 A
re
a
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
m
a
lle
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 n
e
e
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

F
e
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
re
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l.
 

8
 –
 N

o
rt
h
 M

id
d
le
s
e
x
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

T
ru
s
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 M

iln
e
r 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 T
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
d
le
s
e
x
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
is
 k
e
e
n
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
 h
a
s
 a
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 –
 i
f 
th
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
g
o
o
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 f
e
e
d
 o
u
t 
in
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
 i
s
 v
ia
 A
c
c
id
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
. 

 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
 I
f 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 t
o
u
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 w
o
rk
s
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
n
 p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 M

iln
e
r.
  
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
M
e
la
n
ie
 P
o
n
o
m
a
re
n
k
o
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
g
a
n
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
m
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
–
 y
o
u
n
g
 m

a
le
s
. 

 T
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
 h
a
s
 t
e
n
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
th
re
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
la
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w

it
h
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
: 

“1
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

5
. 
T
h
a
t 
w
e
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
f 
c
h
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 

o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

Page 15



  

1
0
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 r
o
le
 a
s
 a
 s
o
c
ia
lly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 “
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
it
iz
e
n
” 
is
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
” 

T
h
e
s
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

 A
re
a
s
 w
h
e
re
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
: 

o
 
S
k
ill
s
 –
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 m

id
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

o
 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 c
u
lt
u
re
 o
f 
‘y
o
u
 g
e
t 
w
h
a
t 
y
o
u
’r
e
 g
iv
e
n
’ 
b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

o
 
N
e
tw
o
rk
s
 –
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 o
u
t 
to
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

o
 
‘N
o
is
e
’ 
- 
lo
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
h
o
w
 ‘
q
u
ie
te
r’
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 c
a
n
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 a
s
 o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 v
o
c
a
l.
  
It
 i
s
 o
ft
e
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
ie
te
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 

m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 H
a
v
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 u
p
 w
it
h
 B
M
E
 C
a
re
rs
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
ri
s
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 o
n
 b
o
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 e
x
is
te
n
c
e
 o
f 
u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 Q

u
e
ry
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
a
n
 t
e
ll 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
re
 t
ru
ly
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
la
im

 t
o
. 
  

 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
 h
a
s
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 w
h
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 w
e
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
m
 w
it
h
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 

c
a
re
 a
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 

 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
.g
. 
th
e
 

C
h
a
re
d
i 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 h
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 H
a
c
k
n
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.
 

 

9
 –
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

C
h
ri
s
 G

ile
s
 

 

Page 16



  

P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

 1
3
%
 o
f 
in
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
. 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 g
a
p
. 

 A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 d
o
 n
o
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
, 

le
t 
a
lo
n
e
 w
it
h
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 s
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
. 

 T
h
e
 2
0
0
8
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 3
8
7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

w
h
ic
h
 w

e
re
 s
e
e
n
 a
t 
th
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
. 

 M
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 g
e
tt
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
t 
th
e
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

o
 
T
o
u
c
h
 S
c
re
e
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 g
iv
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
n
 

a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 g
iv
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
. 

o
 
1
3
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 g
iv
e
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 v
ia
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
c
re
e
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw
o
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

o
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
–
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 1
0
%
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 

 F
o
c
u
s
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

T
h
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 i
s
 u
s
in
g
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 T
o
u
c
h
 S
c
re
e
n
s
 t
o
 a
s
k
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 j
o
in
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

F
iv
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 w
a
y
 s
o
 f
a
r 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
m
id
w
if
e
ry
. 

 In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 c
a
rd
io
lo
g
y
, 
d
ia
b
e
te
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
rm

a
to
lo
g
y
 –
 t
h
is
 e
n
a
b
le
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 A
n
ti
-c
o
a
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
.g
. 
p
h
a
rm

a
c
ie
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
m
 m

o
re
 e
a
s
ily
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

 A
ll 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 g
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
a
u
s
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 a
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 h
a
s
 g
o
n
e
 d
o
w
n
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
o
u
c
h
 s
c
re
e
n
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

Page 17



  

p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 p
o
in
t 
to
 e
x
p
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
 o
n
 h
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 s
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
fe
e
l 
th
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 m

o
re
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
a
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 h
a
s
 5
/6
 o
n
 s
it
e
 i
n
te
rp
re
te
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 q
u
it
e
 u
n
iq
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
u
te
 

s
e
tt
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
te
rp
re
te
rs
 a
re
 S
o
m
a
li,
 P
u
n
ja
b
i,
 T
u
rk
is
h
, 
A
lb
a
n
ia
n
 a
n
d
 G

re
e
k
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 

in
te
rp
re
te
rs
 a
ls
o
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

 Y
o
u
n
g
 m

a
le
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
g
e
s
 1
6
-2
4
y
rs
  
a
re
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
. 
 Y
o
u
n
g
 w
h
it
e
 

m
a
le
s
 a
re
 a
g
a
in
 m

o
re
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
. 
 D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
: 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
fo
rm

a
l 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 e
.g
. 
g
ro
u
p
s
, 
re
lig
io
u
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
tc
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
a
p
p
e
d
 i
n
to
. 
 

W
h
e
re
 d
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 w
h
it
e
 m

a
le
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
n
g
re
g
a
te
?
 

 N
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 s
e
lf
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
re
 o
v
e
r-
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 

e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
n
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 

 A
ls
o
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
lin
ic
a
lly
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 i
lln
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 m

o
re
 p
re
v
a
le
n
t 
in
 s
o
m
e
 e
th
n
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 

1
0
 –
 H

o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

1
1
 –
 D

a
te
 o
f 
N
e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 7

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
 

1
0
-1
2
 

N
o
rt
h
u
m
b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P
a
rk
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

1
2
 –
 N

e
w
 i
te
m
s
 o
f 

u
rg
e
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

Page 18



 
 

Scrutiny Review – Engaging with hard to reach communities 
 

The Homes for Haringey approach – a briefing note 
 

Simon Godfrey, Involvement & Equalities Manager 
 
 
“People say we are hard to reach, but young black men don’t seem hard to 
reach when the Police want to find us”. 
 
Reaching people is not the issue, but engaging with them is.  A fairly sure way 
to get people to make their views known is to give them a terrible service, but 
of course we don’t want to do that. Otherwise, our attempts to engage people 
competes with the many other things they want and need to do with their time. 
 
In Homes for Haringey, we run checks each year on the demographics of 
people who have worked with us more formally over the last 12 months. 
 
Two years ago, we found that we had almost no engagement with young 
people. We decided to fund a year’s contract for one full time equivalent youth 
worker, in practice two half time posts, and we set out to find out what this 
section of the community thought of our services. 
 
Initial attempts were largely failures. Young people have more interesting 
things to do than to commit to a long term formal group. Attempts to bribe 
them into discussion with pizza or to offer MP3 players in prize draws for 
completing surveys gave us very little real insight. Schools are not only for the 
children of Council tenants so it was difficult to address their issues in classes 
from mixed tenures. 
 
Our workers kept saying that the national thinking is that something must be 
in it for young people; in other words, payment, pizza and so on. When we 
turned to video, we finally found something. It turns out that, given the right 
approaches, some young people are perfectly happy to spend some time 
telling us about where they live through video, with a professional film crew 
making it and teaching young people about the process. 
 
On four estates we collected some really clear points about issues that 
affected young people there. Not all, or even most, were about housing. We 
were able to test the films with the wider communities to see if they agreed, 
and largely they did. It was then possible to take the issues out to service 
providers and try to provide solutions. 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 19



Neither the making of the videos nor the solutions would have been possible 
without the partnership and trust of colleagues from other services, especially 
Neighbourhoods and the Youth Service, but others too. Collectively, we can 
open doors to reach communities that might have been shut to any of us 
working alone. Here is an area for further development: if we have even quite 
fuzzy objectives such as ‘engage young people’, we can put our heads 
together to find out how, and the results are likely to be far better. 
 
The biggest gap that we have demographically is in the age group between 
26 and 55, which is unsurprising considering the demands on people at this 
time of life. They don’t tend to commit to established forums, but many are 
quite willing to give us feedback in other ways. Recent examples have been: 

• The door knocking exercise in which staff knocked on the door of 
every property we manage and had surveys back from 4,500 as 
well as picking up lot of other issues 

• Our Aspirations project used 25 focus groups and a series of web-
based surveys 

• Analysis of complaints and satisfaction surveys have identified 
common problems 

• Running an open day instead of a conference in 2008 increased 
attendance from 70 to 500 across 18 ethnicity categories compared 
with the previous 11 

• Telephone surveys were used to check residents’ views on the 
repairs service 

 
Increasingly we are having to broaden our view of who our ‘customers’ are. 
Where once we thought along the lines of those with whom there is a 
contractual relationship (tenants and leaseholders), there is a growing 
understanding that estates are also inhabited by their partners, children, 
extended families and so on. One third of leasehold properties are now sublet 
to people we do not provide services to directly, and we may not even know 
who they are, yet they are part of those communities. The kids who hang out 
there may live somewhere else, yet still see our housing as their patch. 
 
Residents’ associations can be tremendously useful for communities, and we 
do our best to support them, including providing training and funding. Yet 
overall, the numbers stay relatively constant – as new ones arise, old ones die 
out. We have added estate advocates and we are introducing ‘key 
leaseholders’ who will scrutinise the cost of communal services. All these act 
as conduits through which we can gather information on local issues, though 
obviously residents’ associations can go far beyond that. 
 
Hopefully, it goes without saying that we offer interpreters, alternative formats, 
accessible venues, childcare and travel support and induction loops – all the 
usual methods to overcome the barriers that individuals may face. 
 
Finally, it is all about results. They don’t always come, and we don’t always 
get it right. But the one thing that makes it worth engaging is that something 
happens as a result and that people know something has happened. 

Page 20



Engagement for the sake of ticking boxes is very short term. Once 
experienced by residents, they are very unlikely to want to engage ever again. 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY REVIEW: Engaging with Hard to Reach Communities 

Presented by:  Ibi Campbell (Volunteer, AFRIKCARE ) 

WHO WE ARE: 

Afrikcare was set up in 2006 as a Befriending service to the Sierra Leonean  (West 

African) Community many of whom were Refugees fleeing the 15 year brutal civil war in 

Sierra Leone between 1990 and 2005.  Immigration advice and support to enable 

Refugees settle in Haringey and neighbouring Boroughs were originally provided by 

Sierra Leone Family Welfare Association.  The project’s objectives  were achieved 

successfully but was time limited and ended in 2007. Afrikcare then took over and 

continued to provide Befriending, advocacy and culture specific counselling services 

for this group of people.  We are not funded by the council, we relied on members 

voluntary contributions because we support people living in Hackney, Islington, Enfield 

as and when needed.  Determined to make sure people from our community do not 

suffer in silence, we were later able to identify more older Sierra Leonean people in 

need of support and others of West African origin, who were found to be isolated, 

lonely, some of whom have lost contact with families and friends and lack 

understanding of the social system. 

HOW WE DID IT: 

Many of the people we found were through: 

• ‘word-of-mouth’ – talking to other compatriots  

•  network with other groups in the South East/West London – asking if they know 

who has arrived and whether they live in Haringey or surrounding boroughs 

• attending social functions and events 

• attend local Churches/Faith groups  or,  

• by hearing one of the Country’s ethnic language spoken in local markets and 

shops. 

We try to first establish a dialogue and rapport, to build confidence.  (Many Africans are 

friendly and tend to trust all and sundry, however, because of the decades of war 

which has affected some parts of that continent, there is lack of trust , suspicion and 

apathy amongst those who manage to escape to a safe place. Therefore, we use 

certain skills based on our culture to attract these people in order to befriend and find 

out what there issues are, in order to signpost to other services if need be or provide 

direct support to the individual or families. 

BARRIERS TO PARTICIPATION: 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



Many Older African people tend not to seek assistance because they are not aware 

that they could benefit from services. 

• Services are usually labelled as BME, but when accessed found that they are 

either for Caribbean or Asian people  

• Perceptions that Africans are economic migrants therefore isolate themselves 

from mainstream services. 

• Some older African people living here felt because they have not contributed to 

tax and national insurance they are not entitled to benefits 

• Older family members who are invited to come over as childminders and later 

become ordinary resident do not understand the social system , and when they 

fall ill or there is a family rift, they are immediately send back home because 

families here cannot cope with looking after them.  They have limited time to 

engage with the Council if they are full-time childminders.   

• The stigma of HIV/AIDS prevent many African sufferers not to discuss/disclose 

their issues, but secretly attend private clinics 

• BME classification does not always provide a solution for all Africans because of 

the different customs/cultures/language and values.   

 

WHERE IMPROVEMENTS CAN BE MADE 

We recognise that there are limited resources, however, effort should be made to 

reach out to all communities.  This will enable the local authority to learn and 

understand that we are all unique in different ways as well as contribute to the welfare 

of our individual communities. 

• A recognition/celebrating the diversity of the Boroughs Communities by 

organising events for and with the different community groups. 

•  Advertise and promote the services available, eg. Pensions, Disability 

Allowance, Community Transport, Mental Health Awareness; Dementia,  

Sicklecell, Prostate Cancer, etc; etc at community events. 

• Support the development of culture specific services  

• Encourage more partnership/consortia working to manage resources 

• Engage with more African led churches as they provide a vehicle for reaching 

out to those who would not engage with mainstream. 

Page 24



• Ensure that older parents who are child minders do not become vulnerable to 

abuse. 

 

December 2009 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	03 - Minutes

	5 Homes for Haringey
	8 Afrikcare/Community Link Forum Representative

